
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

SOUTHERN DIVISION 
- - - - - - - - - - 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

  Plaintiff,       

 v.         

JOHNNY WAYNE RATLIFF, 
 a/k/a “Iceman,” 
 a/k/a “Memphis,” and 
BRANDON D. JORDAN,

  Defendants. 
/ INDICTMENT

 The Grand Jury charges: 

COUNT ONE
(Methamphetamine Conspiracy) 

 From  in or about the middle of 2014 until on or about October 8, 2015, in Kalamazoo 

County, in the Southern Division of the Western District of Michigan, and elsewhere, 

JOHNNY WAYNE RATLIFF, 
a/k/a “Iceman,” 

a/k/a “Memphis,” and 
BRANDON D. JORDAN, 

did knowingly and intentionally combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with each other and 

other persons, both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to distribute and possess with the 

intent to distribute 50 grams or more of methamphetamine, a Schedule II controlled substance. 

21 U.S.C. § 846 
21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1) 
21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(A)(viii) 
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COUNT TWO
(Possession with Intent to Distribute Methamphetamine) 

 On or about October 8, 2015, in Kalamazoo County, in the Southern Division of the 

Western District of Michigan, 

BRANDON D. JORDAN, 

in a parcel, did knowingly and intentionally possess with intent to distribute 50 grams or more of 

methamphetamine, a Schedule II controlled substance.   

21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1)
21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(A)(viii) 
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COUNT THREE
(Possession with Intent to Distribute Methamphetamine) 

 On or about October 8, 2015, in Kalamazoo County, in the Southern Division of the 

Western District of Michigan, 

JOHNNY WAYNE RATLIFF, 
a/k/a “Iceman,” 

a/k/a “Memphis,” 

in a residence, did knowingly and intentionally possess with intent to distribute a quantity of 

methamphetamine, a Schedule II controlled substance.   

21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1)
21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(C) 
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COUNT FOUR
(Possession with Intent to Distribute Heroin) 

 On or about October 8, 2015, in Kalamazoo County, in the Southern Division of the 

Western District of Michigan, 

JOHNNY WAYNE RATLIFF, 
a/k/a “Iceman,” 

a/k/a “Memphis,” 

in a residence, did knowingly and intentionally possess with intent to distribute a quantity of a 

mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of heroin, a Schedule I controlled 

substance.

21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1)
21 U.S.C. § 841(b)(1)(C) 
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COUNT FIVE
(Felon in Possession of a Firearm) 

On or about October 8, 2015, in Kalamazoo County, in the Southern Division of the 

Western District of Michigan,  

JOHNNY WAYNE RATLIFF, 
a/k/a “Iceman,” 

a/k/a “Memphis,” 

being a person who had been convicted of one or more offenses punishable by imprisonment for 

a term exceeding one year under the laws of Tennessee, did knowingly possess one or more 

firearms in and affecting commerce, namely, a loaded Kel-Tec 9mm semiautomatic pistol 

bearing serial no. R3R64; a loaded Kel-Tec, Model P-11, 9mm semiautomatic pistol bearing 

serial no. AZ922; and a Smith & Wesson, Model SD40 VE, .40 caliber semiautomatic pistol 

bearing serial no. FWN9224.

18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1) 
18 U.S.C. § 921(a) 
18 U.S.C. § 924(a)(2) 
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(Forfeiture Allegation) 

The allegations set forth in Count Five of this Indictment are hereby re-alleged and 

incorporated by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeitures pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 

924(d)(1) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c).  Upon conviction of the offense in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 

922(g)(1) charged in Count Five of this Indictment, the defendant, 

JOHNNY WAYNE RATLIFF, 
a/k/a “Iceman,” 

a/k/a “Memphis,” 

shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 924(d)(1) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c), any 

firearm or ammunition involved in or used in the commission of the offense, including but not 

limited to a loaded Kel-Tec 9mm semiautomatic pistol bearing serial no. R3R64; a loaded Kel-

Tec, Model P-11, 9mm semiautomatic pistol bearing serial no. AZ922; and a Smith & Wesson, 

Model SD40 VE, .40 caliber semiautomatic pistol bearing serial no. FWN9224. 

18 U.S.C. § 924(d)(1) 
28 U.S.C. § 2461(c) 
18 U.S.C. § 922(g)

A TRUE BILL

        ___________________________ 
        GRAND JURY FOREPERSON
PATRICK A. MILES, JR.
United States Attorney     

_____________________________
HEATH M. LYNCH
Assistant United States Attorney
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